
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Wednesday 16 December 2020 at 5.00 pm 

 
 

Online via https://civico.net/birmingham 

 
 
 

Joint Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee  

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

BIRMINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

  

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (BIRMINGHAM AND 

SOLIHULL)  
 

 

WEDNESDAY, 16 DECEMBER 2020 AT 17:00 HOURS  

IN ON-LINE MEETING, MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 

A G E N D A 

 

 
1 NOTICE OF RECORDING/WEBCAST  

 
The Chairman to advise/meeting to note that this meeting will be webcast 
for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's Internet site 
(www.civico.net/birmingham) and that members of the press/public may 
record and take photographs except where there are confidential or exempt 
items.  

 

 

 
2 APOLOGIES  

 
To receive any apologies. 
 

 

 
3 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  

 
Members are reminded that they must declare all relevant  pecuniary and non 
pecuniary interests arising from any business to be discussed at this meeting. If a 
disclosable pecuniary interest is declared a Member must not speak or take part in 
that agenda item. Any declarations will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. 
 

 

3 - 8 
4 MINUTES  

 
To note the minutes of the last meeting held on 13 October 2020. 
 

 

9 - 22 
5 BRIEFING ON BIRMINGHAM AND SOLIHULL STP WAVE 2 UPDATE  

 
Harvir Lawrence, Director of Planning and Delivery, BSol CCG; Ian Sharp, 
Clinical Lead, Elective Care, UHB; Paul Sherriff, Director of Organisational 
Development and Partnerships, BSol CCG. 
 

 

23 - 30 
6 BIRMINGHAM AND SOLIHULL STP FINANCE UPDATE 2020/21  

 
Paul Athey, Chief Finance Officer, BSol CCG. 
 

 

Page 1 of 40
Page 3

Agenda Item 1

http://www.civico.net/birmingham


 

31 - 40 
7 URGENT CARE UPDATE AND NHS 111 FIRST  

 
Helen Kelly, Associate Director of Integration (Urgent Care/Community), 
BSol CCG. 
 

 

 
8 OTHER URGENT BUSINESS  

 
To consider any items of business by reason of special circumstances (to 
be specified) that in the opinion of the Chairman are matters of urgency. 
 

 

 
9 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  

 
The next meeting will be held at the Civic Suite, Solihull on 9th March 2021 
at 1800 hours. 
 

 

Page 2 of 40
Page 4



 

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 13 October 2020 

 
 

 

1  

MINUTES 

 
 
Present: Councillors: Fowler, Pocock, Donaldson, K Blunt, Mrs D Holl-

Allen MBE, D Howell, L McCarthy and R Sexton 
 

Officers: Phil Johns – Deputy Chief Executive, Birmingham and Solihull CCG 

Harvir Lawrence – Director of Planning and Delivery, Birmingham and 
Solihull CCG 
Gemma Rauer - Assistant Director of Communications and 
Engagement 
Gail Sadler – Scrutiny Officer 
Joseph Bright – Democratic Services Officer 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES  

 
There were no apologies. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS  
 
No questions or deputations were submitted. 
 

4. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were presented. 
 
 RESOLVED 

The minutes of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
on 11th June were approved. 

 
5. BSOL STP - RESTORATION AND RECOVERY AND PHASE 3 PLANNING 

UPDATE  
 
The Director of Planning and Delivery presented the report, providing an update 
on the restoration and recovery of services, following the report to the 
Committee in June. She detailed how the report provided an update on the 
CCG’s current position, progress on winter preparations, the Phase 3 plan, as 
well as the service change position. It was emphasised how circumstances 
were rapidly changing, since the report was published, due to the second wave 
of Covid being experienced. 
 

Members raised the following questions and observations: 

• Members highlighted the arrangements for delivering enhanced flu 

vaccination measures. They noted the report identified a shortfall of over 

Item 4

Page 3 of 40
Page 5



 

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 13 October 2020 

 
 

 

2  

c250,000 across the whole system – they queried how access to this 

treatment was going to be prioritised. 

• The Deputy Chief Executive explained how they had received 

notification the previous day, from the Department of Health, of 

additional stock they had been able to secure. It was explained how the 

Department of Health was sending through details as to how practices 

could access this additional stock.  

• Members queried the preparatory works, for when a Covid-19 

vaccination may become available.  

• The Deputy Chief Executive confirmed there was on-going preparatory 

work, being led by University Hospital’s Birmingham (UHB), with 
participation from all provider organisations and the CCG. It was noted 

the delivery of the Covid-19 vaccine may overlap with the flu vaccination 

programme. The Deputy Chief detailed how they were identifying the key 

locations required, as well as the volume of staff they would have to be 

redeployed.  

• Members flagged up how the report detailed current activity, capacity 

and scenario modelling. They queried how the scenarios identified within 

the report had been impacted by the recent rise in cases and second 

wave.  

• The Director of Planning and Delivery explained how, as part of Phase 3 

planning, all providers had been asked to model activity and capacity 

against a range of scenarios in terms of best and worst case as follows: 

o Scenario A – as per the Phase 3 plan. 

o Scenario B – 5% of general and acute beds being occupied, with 

a 15% reduction in elective activity. 

o Scenario C – a sustained Covid demand that peaked at 20% of 

beds being occupied, with a greater reduction in elective activity. 

o Scenario D – a similar peak to April, with 35% of beds being 

occupied and a stand down of elective activity, as per national 

guidance issued. 

• The Director of Planning and Delivery explained that, last week they 

were at scenario B and now they were at scenario C. It was noted there 

was potential for this to be impacted further, depending on the volume of 

patients being admitted to UHB. 

• The Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that a quarter of their ICU 

capacity was occupied by Covid patients, which impacted on their ability 

to deliver elective activity. Where necessary, surrounding providers 

could also provide support – for instance, the Royal Orthopaedic could 

offer anaesthetic support. The Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that the 

system, as a whole, was responding to demand levels.   

• Members highlighted how the report detailed proposed permanent 

changes to service delivery. They emphasised how these proposed 

changes were now in the public domain and queried how any public 

concerns stemming from this could be managed. 

Page 4 of 40
Page 6



 

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 13 October 2020 

 
 

 

3  

• The Assistant Director of Communications and Engagement emphasised 

the ongoing communications to ensure patients and residents were 

aware of how to access the necessary services. She detailed how, if any 

issues were raised in respect of changes to specific services, they would 

look to respond on a case-by-case basis. There was also an emphasis, 

where appropriate, on people using NHS 111 first, so they were 

assessed and accessed the correct support. 

• Members detailed how further service changes, not detailed in the 

document, may be required due to the rise in infection rates – they 

queried how this would be communicated to the public. The Assistant 

Director of Communications and Engagement detailed how they would 

work with partners to ensure that, as far as possible, they were 

communicating with patients and the public in a timely way. She 

explained that, in regards to public facing services, such as Minor 

Injuries Units and Urgent Treatment Centres, there had already been a 

lot of communication about contacting NHS 111 first, so patients could 

be triaged and advised on the most appropriate service for their needs. It 

was detailed how there would be on-going significant communications, 

to ensure people were aware of the NHS 111 service. 

• Members queried the on-going use of the Independent Sector, noting 

there was a flexible agreement up until March 2021 – they queried 

whether there had been any change here, following the recent rise in 

Covid-cases. 

• The Deputy Chief Executive confirmed they were continuing to use 75 

per cent of the Independent Sector capacity, to support on-going elective 

activity. It was explained there were now plans to change this, in order to 

protect operating capacity. 

• Members queried whether the proposed permanent changes to service 

delivery were for the duration of the Covid-19 pandemic, or beyond. It 

was also noted that, as part these changes, there was a significant 

emphasis upon these services being delivered digitally. Members 

expressed concern that some of the patients and residents affected may 

struggle to access digital services. It was also highlighted, in particular, 

how it was proposed to undertake virtual assessments and consultations 

for Continuing Healthcare assessments (CHC) – Members also 

highlighted concerns here, taking into account the potential complexity of 

cases. 

• The Deputy Chief Executive explained that, in regards to CHC 

assessments, the CHC team was going to be co-located in the 

Integrated Discharge hub, which should lead to an improvement in 

service delivery, as more professionals, including Social Workers, were 

going to be involved earlier. 

• The Assistant Director of Communications emphasised it was fully 

recognised that digital access was not a suitable option for everyone. 

She explained how there was a focus on advocacy support for patients 

Page 5 of 40
Page 7



 

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 13 October 2020 

 
 

 

4  

and residents, including work with local organisations, to ensure they 

could access the services they required. 

• The Director of Planning and Delivery confirmed the proposed service 

changes in the report were for the duration of the Covid-19 pandemic 

and potentially beyond. It was emphasised that any proposed changes 

would be subject to on-going review, to ensure the best future service 

delivery model. 

• Members detailed the concerns raised by the public in regards to 

accessing Primary Care services in Solihull – they queried the 

messaging here. They also expressed concerns regarding the potential 

for serious conditions not to be diagnosed, when digital consultations 

were undertaken. 

• The Assistant Director of Communications emphasised the volume of 

work undertaken with Primary Care Services to support effective 

communications and messaging. The Deputy Chief Executive explained 

how patients were being triaged over the phone, to ensure a 

digital/telephone or face-to-face consultation was undertaken, as 

appropriate. He emphasised it was not their intention to move to a 100% 

digital solution. The Deputy Chief Executive confirmed he would look to 

get assurances how the clinical protocols worked in instances where 

patients may experience difficulties communicating their conditions. 

• Members raised the issue of reduction in capacity in dental services, due 

to the use of aerosol generating procedures and the need to maintain 

safe environments – they requested a further update on this. The Deputy 

Chief Executive explained how Birmingham Dental Hospital were 

restarting services; however, it was emphasised the CCG did not 

commission general dental services. 

• Members welcomed the additional mental health support for staff 

detailed in the report and queried how they would access this. They also 

asked for clarification regarding staffing levels at that moment.  

• The Director of Planning and Delivery detailed how they were promoting 

the health and wellbeing of staff, through increased psychological 

therapies, as well as well online and telephone-based mental health 

support. They were also looking to promote an on-going dialogue about 

mental health and wellbeing, through one-to-one meetings between line 

managers and staff, as well as via team meetings. The Director of 

Planning and Delivery also detailed how it was recognised that staff had 

been impacted by the first wave of Covid – where necessary, going 

forward, they would look at increased use of agency staff, as well as 

being innovative about how staff were being used across the system. 

 
RESOLVED 

The Joint Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
noted the current position, progress on winter preparations, Phase 3 
plan and service change position. 

Page 6 of 40
Page 8



 

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 13 October 2020 

 
 

 

5  

 
6. JOINT HEALTH AND OVERVIEW SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK PLAN  

 
Members were invited to consider the proposed work plan for the remainder of 
the municipal year. 
 
 RESOLVED 

The Joint Health and Overview Scrutiny Committee approved the 
proposed work plan. 

 
 
 

End time of meeting: 7.20 pm 

Page 7 of 40
Page 9



 

Page 8 of 40
Page 10



 

 

To:  Joint Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

From:  Harvir Lawrence, Director of Planning and Delivery, NHS 
Birmingham and Solihull CCG 

Date: 16 December 2020 

Report:  Briefing on Birmingham and Solihull STP Wave 2 Update 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT   

 
This progress report is to provide an update on the latest developments in managing COVID-
19, service changes in response to wave 2 and the approach and the ongoing engagement 
with key stakeholders.   
 
 
2. COVID CURRENT POSITION AND CHALLENGES 

 
2.1 Case rate  

 
As at 29/11/20, the case rate has been decreasing over the past week for Birmingham and 
Solihull. The rolling 7-day average for Birmingham has reduced in the past week from 362.7 
to 229.6 per 100,000 population. The Solihull figure has seen a similar decrease from 273.6 to 
160.1 per 100,000.  

  

2.2 Demography 
 
There remains over 400 inpatients who have tested positive for COVID across Birmingham 
and Solihull. This has decreased from just under 500 a week ago. More generally, we are 
seeing an increased number of people aged 65 plus who are affected by the virus.  
 
2.3 Geographical prevalence across Birmingham and Solihull  
 
The heat maps in this report show the confirmed COVID cases by ward for Birmingham and 
Solihull. These maps compare data from the preceding month to the most recent week and 
show the changing pattern.  
 

Item 5

Page 9 of 40
Page 11



The heat maps show testing results for pillars 1 and 2. Both pillars 1 and 2 testing are sent to 
laboratories to process but there are differences in how the tests are undertaken. Pillar 1 tests 
are carried out in hospital or at an outbreak location whereas pillar 2 covers a wider range of 
testing methods including tests conducted at a regional testing site, local testing site, mobile 
testing site, conducted via a home testing kit or tests conducted at a satellite testing centre. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10 of 40
Page 12



 

Geographical prevalence - Birmingham  
 

 

 
Note: Cases for the week 21-27/11/20 are likely to be an under-estimate due to time-lags in reporting.  

 

• The thematic maps above show the number of confirmed COVID cases by ward since March, for the past month and then also for the past week. The key on 
the left shows that the lowest concentration of cases has a colour code of yellow and the highest concentration of cases brown. It is also important to note that 
the keys are the same on each graph, but the colours represent different volumes of cases. 

• This data correlates with a falling case rate across Birmingham, although there remain two wards who have had more than 90 confirmed positive cases over 
the last week. There is a clear drop in the volume of cases across the city in the latest week of data from the preceding month. 

 
Page 11 of 40

P
age 13



Geographical prevalence – Solihull  

 

 
• The thematic maps above show the number of confirmed COVID cases by ward since March, for the past month and then also for the past week. The key on 

the left shows that the lowest concentration of cases has a colour code of blue and the highest concentration of cases red. It is also important to note that the 
keys are the same on each graph, but the colours represent different volumes of cases.  

• The drop in case rate in Solihull over the past week is shown in the thematic map above with most wards now colour coded blue and having less than 20 new 
confirmed cases of COVID. A further three wards have had between 21 and 30 cases and there is a single ward with between 31 and 40 cases. 

Page 12 of 40

P
age 14



 

 
2.4  Numbers of people being admitted to hospital 
 
The number of admitted COVID cases is now reaching significantly increased levels in 
comparison to the number of cases and bed occupancy levels in wave 1 as we went into the 
first lockdown. These rising numbers during wave 2 are creating a strain on general bed and 
Intensive Trauma Unit (ITU) capacity as well as the ability to protect Solihull Hospital and the 
Royal Orthopaedic Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (ROH) as COVID free elective sites. There 
has been a significant increase in pressure in ITU activity, and as such workforce resilience 
and availability are affected.  
 
2.5  Potential wave 3  
 
There are concerns regarding the impact of the festive season in relation to rising infection 
rates, which could lead to a further spike in cases in mid-January 2021. Social distancing and 
infection control remain a significant challenge and a critical priority to manage the winter 
season of flu and COVID. In the event of a third spike, we will need to review the position and 
look at how our services can be delivered, depending on pressures on system capacity.  

2.6 System pressures and the need to scale back elective activity 
 

As per our restoration and recovery plans following wave 1 of the pandemic, we had intended 
to restore as much elective activity as possible and this process started in the summer.  
However, previous weeks have shown a significant rise in COVID-19 cases and admissions 
to hospitals as part of wave 2 of the pandemic, although the latest data shows that the number 
of cases has in fact started to drop.  
 
Nevertheless, there is still significant pressure in the system and there is an ongoing need to 
protect urgent and emergency care and ITUs to support COVID, maintain delivery for high 
priority elective cases as far as possible, and focus on the most urgent clinical priorities. To 
support our elective care programme, there is also a growing reliance on access to 
independent sector capacity, which is also being accessed by other STPs in the region. Access 
to further capacity has been agreed with the potential to utilise up to 100% of theatre time. This 
is to manage the ongoing challenges of delivering as much elective activity as possible.  
 
At present, Solihull Hospital and the ROH both remain as ‘green sites’ in that capacity at the 
hospitals is being protected to deliver elective care for priority 1 and 2 patients.  
 
2.7 Digital delivery of care 

 
We recognise that COVID has accelerated the implementation of our ‘digital first’ programme, 
an ambition in the Long Term Plan. Through this, we have been able to continue to provide 
care, albeit remotely, through telephone or video consultations, which has supported social 
distancing and infection control measures. However, we have also been keen to understand if 
this is working in practice for our population.  

During the summer, the CCG conducted an engagement exercise to evaluate the impact of 
COVID-19. The online survey had 694 respondents and through the assistance of seven 
voluntary and community partners, we were also able to collect the views of 241 people from 
groups adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The report, which was analysed independently, found that the majority of respondents who 
had accessed services via the telephone and found this easy. Moreover, of the small number 
of people that indicated that they received a video consultation, nearly two-thirds, said that 
they had also found it easy.  

Page 13 of 40
Page 15



However, it is worth noting that the results from the engagement also indicated that 
respondents want to have the ability to access face-to-face services, when needed. The report 
is being shared to ensure that partners across Birmingham and Solihull can address the 
findings.  

 
3. ACTIONS BEING TAKEN TO MANAGE COVID-19  
 
Several actions have been agreed, at Chief Executive level, to enable the system to manage 
demand and service pressures.  The following sections are a summary of the position and 
critical actions taken to manage COVID.  

 
3.1  Clinical prioritisation and harm reviews  
 
On 11 April 2020, the Royal Colleges of Surgeons in England and Scotland published guidance 
on surgical priorities in light of COVID. The aim of the guidance was to: 

• Support clinicians and managers to plan the allocation of surgical resources 

• Support individual surgical specialties to appreciate the needs of other specialties when 
resources are stretched 

• Facilitate the development of regional surgical networks to sustain the delivery of 
surgery in a timely fashion 

• Ensure there are mechanisms to support and communicate with patients so that: 
o Patients are provided with information regarding any up and coming 

surgery/treatment in the context of COVID e.g. safety measures, risks of not 
proceeding supporting patient choice and information 

o Patients are provided with information and they do not ‘get lost’ in the system if 
treatment is deferred due to pressures 

o To manage the inevitable increase in waiting times and size of waiting lists that 
will occur in all surgical specialties.  

Within Birmingham and Solihull, Chief Medical Officers in the CCG and Trusts have worked 
together to develop more specific guidance to support patients and respond to specific 
pressures within this area. This supports clinicians to review when and how quickly it might be 
appropriate to consider a patient for surgery or treatment and whether the NHS patient is listed 
with an NHS trust or an independent sector provider. There are weekly meetings with the Chief 
Medical Officers to discuss the position on clinical prioritisation and mutual aid.  

The prioritisation is based on national guidance as follows:  

Category/ 
priority 

Timescales clinically appropriate to wait for treatment 

Priority 1 Emergency patients  

Priority 2 Need to be treated within a month 

Priority 3 Need to be treated within 3 months 

Priority 4 Patients who can wait longer than 3 months and can be delayed by a further 
3 months 

Priority 5 Patients wishing to postpone surgery because of COVID concerns 

Priority 6 Patients wishing to postpone surgery because of non-COVID concerns 

 

Page 14 of 40
Page 16



Due to the pressures that COVID has generated we are undertaking ongoing clinical 
prioritisation to support delivery of the system’s most clinical urgent cases. This is based on 
the available capacity and the prioritisation of priority 1 and 2 patients in the national guidance.  

Each acute trust has adopted the clinical prioritisation policy and are delivering this in line with 
their internal governance.  

• University Hospitals Birmingham NHS Foundation Trust (UHB) – There is a daily 
clinically led meeting to review and prioritise patients into cohorts, which is supported 
by clinical validation. Patients are also advised of the situation and are informed 
regarding next steps, which is key in terms of reassurance to patients. It also provides 
an opportunity for patients to highlight any issues, which may result in a harm review 
or movement to another priority grouping. UHB has put in place a single administration 
system across all their sites, which is supporting this work. A review is currently being 
completed by the speciality leads and the clinical governance team of the risks 
associated with the patients that are currently on the waiting list. The aim of the review 
will be to document the risks and associated mitigation plans on the appropriate risk 
register. According to the level of the risk it will be managed in accordance with the 
trust’s risk management policy which will include reporting at Board of Director level.  

• Birmingham Women’s and Children’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (BWCH) - 
A series of status checks and harm reviews are being carried out to ensure waiting lists 
are clinically prioritised effectively, accurate and identify patients at risk of harm, or 
where harm has occurred:  

o The status checks review patients waiting for care and check on how each 
patient is, which supports any immediate action needed. This is a 
comprehensive process which is tracked closely and in the event of not 
receiving a response from the patient, a call is made as additional follow-up. 
Following the review of responses, any issues are also escalated. 

o The harm reviews normally follow treatment or where harm is suspected, and 
reviews take place to improve services and processes for other patients. These 
are comprehensively recorded which also includes where no harm is caused. 
Where harm is suspected, a root cause analysis review is undertaken, which is 
reported to the Clinical Harm Assessment Panel for review with outcomes 
agreed. This is further reported to the relevant Quality Committees in BWCH for 
oversight.   

o As with UHB process, this is a live process and patients are informed of the 
position. 

• ROH – Patients are kept informed of their progress and informed of the next steps in 
relation to their care via virtual appointments or face to face clinic appointments as 
appropriate.  

o A clinical review has included a review for harm and potential harm in the line 
with the trust harm review process. All prioritisation levels are documented on 
the trust patient level tracking system, so they are visible and any clinical 
outcomes from clinic appointment are documented as part of the medical 
record.  

o All patients that have been listed for surgery have undergone a clinically led 
review and are prioritised based on the national guidance. 

o A harm review process is undertaken to identify patients with waits for treatment 
over 52 weeks as identified from the patient tracking list and referral to treatment 
time database.  

o The harm reviews undertaken are presented at a multidisciplinary team meeting 
and the primary consideration of the panel is to identify if harm has occurred, or 
is likely to occur, as a result of a delay in treatment or diagnosis. Where this is 
identified the group ensures that a duty of candour meeting is arranged with the 
patient/family and a patient specific treatment plan is developed. Further to this 

Page 15 of 40
Page 17



a root cause analysis is undertaking and reported to the CCG as a Serious 
Incident (SI) if it meets the SI Framework. The harm review meeting is reported 
to divisional and board level within the ROH and chaired by the Associate 
Medical Director  

o Given the national, regional and trust clinical prioritisation schedule, it is hoped 
that the majority of breach patients will be low risk or patient choice so that the 
likelihood of severe harm is envisaged to be low. 

o In line with the national request for ongoing prioritisation of patients the trust 
have set up a task and finish group to fulfil requirements set out by the national 
team, which will report to the trust board through the Quality and Safety 
Committee. 

To deliver care and treatment, we are maintaining Solihull Hospital and the ROH as COVID-
free elective sites. Additional theatre lists that can be completed by the ROH will also be 
identified to support this. ROH have confirmed they will be working through UHB’s priority list 
of priority 2 and 3 patients. This includes the delivery of cancer activity for priority 2 and 3 
patients. In addition, the ROH is in discussions with Sandwell and West Birmingham Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust to scope capacity at the ROH and treat priority 2 orthopaedic cases in 
line with their ongoing support to the wider system.  

3.2 Support for staff 
 
As a system, we have worked closely to put in place a number of initiatives to support staff 
given the challenges of COVID. This has been in relation to wave 1 as well as the ongoing 
work to manage wave 2 and the vaccination programmes for both flu and COVID. 

One of our key strengths and achievements as a system is that we have an active 
Memorandum of Understanding in place to support movement of staff across the system and 
provide mutual aid to areas of greatest service need.  

We have also developed a People Plan and established a STP People Board to ensure a 
dedicated focus on our workforce to build capacity and resilience. Our plan going forward 
includes: 

• Enhanced staff health and wellbeing 
o The STP has successfully bid to NHS England/Improvement (NHSEI) for both 

an enhanced wellbeing and occupational health offer (£2 million) and a staff 
mental health hub (c.£370,000).  

o The ambition is to develop a hub and spoke model to deliver an integrated, 
joined up, system wide approach to meet the psychological, mental, physical 
and professional health needs of 80,000 health and care staff across 
Birmingham and Solihull. This will be a pilot and will enable this shared ambition 
of health and wellbeing for staff to be translated from strategy into practice. An 
initial launch workshop was held on 24 November. 

o Birmingham and Solihull Mental Health Foundation Trust (BSMHFT) are 
working with UHB to create adult mental health ‘zones’ as part of the enhanced 
wellbeing occupational health offer and mental health hub for staff.  

o BSMHFT will be lead provider for the mental health hub, working with other third 
sector partner agencies, which will operate through the existing Single Point of 
Access to enable staff to get fast access to highly specialist psychological and 
mental health assessment before being advised on treatment options.  

o Some treatments will be available via the mental health hub, but staff accessing 
this hub will also be referred or signposted into local Improving Access for 
Psychological Therapies or mental health services where more appropriate.  

o The mental health hub, which will go live in the new year, will operate almost 
exclusively remotely using video links such as MS Teams, Zoom etc, and will 

Page 16 of 40
Page 18



mostly focus on individual contacts. More proactive lower level psychological 
and mental health wellbeing and resilience focused support will be available via 
the health and wellbeing hub. Both hubs are available to all staff working across 
the system.  

• Establishing additional support for our Black Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) 
staff – this includes equality, diversity and inclusive leadership development, which will 
be reviewed by the People Board.  

• An ongoing focus in monitoring system workforce changes – this will include 
monitoring workforce growth, sickness absence and race equality.  

• A focus on recruitment – To manage the ongoing challenges regarding workforce 
capacity, Trusts also continue to recruit to fill vacancies and substantive offers of 
employment have been made to redeployed students, 'Bring Back Staff’ and nursing 
students who are due to qualify in January 2021. UHB is also undertaking large scale 
recruitment to recruit enhanced capacity to deliver the COVID vaccination workforce 
and additional resource is being identified to enhance primary care capacity with a key 
focus GPs during wave 2. An increasing number of allied health professionals and 
registered nurse apprentices have been built into the workforce forecast to review the 
skill mix needed to reduce vacancies and address workforce gaps. This is being 
reviewed regularly to see if the recruitment and additional workforce lead to real 
increases in workforce growth. 

• Agreement to be a pilot for the STP bank/reservist model – this will be an additional 
key component to support an increase in workforce and capacity across the system to 
increase system wide resilience. 

• A strategic intent to recruit from our local communities to support economic 
regeneration - engagement has started with our ‘anchor’ institution network, airlines, 
ex-military staff and local councils to actively recruit to vacancies from those affected 
by the economic impact of COVID.   

• Understanding the workforce impact of various plans – including staffing impacts 
and needs for primary care networks, specialist cancer and diagnostic workforce 
requirements, and mental health. 

 
3.3 Protecting emergency acute hospital capacity 

• Emergency activity - Heartlands, Good Hope and the Queen Elizabeth Hospital 
(QEH) will continue to focus on delivering COVID and emergency activity. The QEH 
will aim to deliver tertiary activity as capacity allows.  

• Ward creation - The gynaecology day case unit at Good Hope Hospital has been 
converted to a ward to provide additional capacity.  

• Gynaecology - As a result of the ward creation referenced above, urgent gynaecology 
cases (priority 2 cases) are being transferred to BWCH including consultant staff. As 
BWCH is unable to provide critical care and a High Dependency Unit, the transferred 
cases have been reviewed and clinically prioritised with some cases being handed over 
to the independent sector and neighbouring trusts, so patients can be treated through 
urgent care, surgery or other treatment as needed. This supports the ongoing 
challenges of capacity and staffing. Patients who are transferred will be contacted and 
a Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) call centre is in place. This enables PALS 
to manage all calls, with a supporting escalation process in place to resolve issues with 
delays and cancellations.  

• Inpatient emergencies - The Good Hope Hospital ambulatory trauma unit is now 
being used for inpatient emergencies.  

• Diverts - Patient diverts have been implemented to ease demand in acute Emergency 
Departments (ED).  This includes divert of patients attending Heartlands Hospital with 
primary care conditions, paediatric ambulance divert from Heartlands Hospital and 
Good Hope Hospital EDs to Birmingham Children’s Hospital ED on a 24/7 basis.    

Page 17 of 40
Page 19



• COVID assessment - A COVID-19 assessment unit has been established on the 
haematology ward at Heartlands Hospital. 

• Outpatients - A reduction in UHB outpatient appointments is now in place to release 
staff to better support acute care for COVID and emergencies.  

• Independent sector - We are maximising the utilisation of independent sector capacity 
across all sites to 100% to support ITU and endoscopy. Targeted use of capacity to 
support individual services will be mapped into available capacity to expand that is 
already in place. 

• Diagnostics - There is a reduction in diagnostic provision and direct access activity 
and remote phlebotomy introduced off site at UHB to support capacity for urgent cases 
and allow COVID social distancing, infection prevention guidelines to be effectively 
applied. 

• Soft Launch of NHS 111 - In line with the rest of the country, all EDs (also known as 
A&E departments) and urgent treatment centres across Birmingham and Solihull are 
no longer ‘walk-in’ services; patients now need to contact NHS111 for advice before 
attending these services. This will enable patients to be seen in the right place, at the 
right time, and enable emergency care to be provided to those who need it. 

 

3.4 Delivering priority elective care   

• Pause in theatre usage - Given the current pressures on elective care and the 
pressing need to release staff resource for ITU at UHB, there will be a reduction in the 
number of theatres operating to allow release of staff to support ITU. This is resulting 
in a temporary pause of elective activity for priority 3, 4 and 5 patients.  

• Waiting lists and ongoing clinical prioritisation - Waiting lists will be reviewed, 
which will include clinical prioritisation and an ongoing review of capability and capacity 
will take place to carry out as much urgent elective surgery as possible.  

• Funding approved to resource endoscopy – at Solihull, two Minor Injury Rooms 
have been converted to endoscopy rooms with NHSEI financial support of over £1.4m. 
The funding will also support four consulting room for nasendoscopy (a form of 
endoscopy that is less invasive than a full endoscopy, as no sedation is required) and 
additional staffing. It is anticipated the endoscopy rooms will be live in the spring given 
the facilities work needed but it will contribute significantly to addressing increased 
diagnostic capacity to identify cancer.  

• Paediatric tertiary transfers - It has been agreed with NHSEI that tertiary transfers 
will no longer be taken by Royal Stoke University Hospital’s Paediatric ITU. These will 
come to Birmingham Children’s Hospital. This is to release ITU capacity for COVID-19 
admissions at the Royal Stoke Hospital given the current pressures in Staffordshire.  

• Establishment of a STP Elective and Outpatient Transformation Hub - Funding 
has been agreed from NHSEI to support the development of a hub which will support 
a system wide focus on patient tracking and prioritisation. This will also include capacity 
allocation across the NHS and Independent Sector which will support elective recovery 
as a result of the pressures from COVID. It will also support outpatient transformation.  

3.5 Managing system flow and community capacity 

• Hospital discharges - Medically fit for discharge patients are being reviewed and 
managed daily to support discharge from acute care into the community. 

• Maximising community beds – Birmingham Community Healthcare NHS Foundation 
Trust (BCHC) will continue to manage the single point of access and maximise use of 
community beds. Additional staff have been redeployed to the Medical Admissions Unit 
and Older People’s Assessment Liaison Service (OPAL) across the system. Good 
Hope and Queen Elizabeth Hospital now have an established OPAL service in place, 
and further work will take place to establish this service at Heartlands.  

Page 18 of 40
Page 20



• Additional community wards - Two additional community wards have opened, and 
two community units have been re-opened, to provide additional community beds and 
release acute bed pressure, maximising all physical space available. The additional 
community beds will be supported by the Dental Hospital nursing team, alongside 
nursing and therapy staff from the ROH. CCG staff will also be redeployed to support 
the wider system.  

• Post-operative care - BCHC and UHB are also exploring the post-acute fractured neck 
of femur rehabilitation pathway to release acute beds.  

• Protecting capacity - To protect community-based resources to support COVID 
delivery, a number of services have had to be temporarily scaled back but are 
continuing to operate on a reduced scale. These include: 

o Assessment and treatment service for outpatients for older adults and younger 
people with complex care needs 

o Moor Green Outpatient Brain Injury Service 
o Musculoskeletal Services 
o Birmingham Neuro-Rehabilitation Team 
o Community Stroke 
o Integrated Multi-Disciplinary Teams (formerly known as District Nursing Teams) 

• Nightingale Hospitals - The Nightingale Hospital in Birmingham remains on standby, 
ready to quickly stand up and provide extra capacity to support local services with 
COVID patients if necessary.  

 
3.6 Supporting primary care and ambulance conveyancing 

• Winter/COVID safe operating model – GP Providers have worked together to 
develop a system wide winter operating model to support practice resilience and 
patient and staff safety during the COVID/winter period. See overleaf for full diagram.  
 

Page 19 of 40
Page 21



Page 20 of 40

P
age 22



 

• National priorities  
o Staying open and accessible - NHSEI has set out the shared ambition for 

general practice to remain fully open and accessible to all patients. However, 
they clearly recognise the additional workload of a COVID-19 vaccination 
programme may require practices to prioritise clinical activity.  

o Quality Outcomes Framework (QOF) - Within preparedness guidance NHSEI 
have referenced reassurance on income is to be provided by the existing 
funding guarantee for the QOF in 2020/21.  

o Extended hours and access - As part of local clinical prioritisation, NHSEI has 
urged local GP providers and CCGs to repurpose extended hours and access 
capacity to provide full support for potential COVID vaccination activity.  

o Repurposing funding capacity - NHSEI has also stated they expect CCGs to 
take sensible decisions around the repurposing of funded capacity delivering 
locally enhanced services which could also be paused. 

• Local priorities 
o Universal Enhanced Service Patient Offer – the CCG has reviewed this and 

stood down non-essential elements of the Offer to support practices to prioritise 
urgent patient care with a focus on core provision until the pressure reduces. 
These flexibilities have supported the introduction of: 

▪ Ambulance conveyancing - A paramedic hotline from GPs is being 
implemented to support ambulance conveyancing. General practices 
are providing clinical advice to indicate the most appropriate location of 
care for individual cases. This supports ambulance conveyance and 
alleviates pressures with ambulance turnaround times 

▪ Additional appointments – Primary Care ‘Red’ Referral Centres have 
increased capacity to support system pressures. 

• Review of staff support – there is the potential to use Additional Roles 
Reimbursement scheme underspend/slippage, GP Forward View 
Retention funds and the COVID Expansion fund 

o GP COVID Expansion Fund has been made available to General Practice to 
focus on 7 key priorities: 

 

Page 21 of 40
Page 23



o Managing public expectations - Work is happening to try and manage 
expectations during this pressurised period, in terms of managing and booking 
appointments.  

o GP Capacity and Appointments - Appointments per month are back to pre 
COVID levels. As expected, more appointments are now undertaken via 
telephone but more than 50% are face to face. 

 

 
4. ONGOING ENGAGEMENT 

 
We will continue to engage with partners and the public regarding the current actions being 
taken to manage COVID-19, the service changes arising from wave 1 and 2 and any impacts 
arising from this. This will include regular communication updates with stakeholders, including 
the Joint Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Solihull Health and 
Wellbeing Board and Birmingham Health and Wellbeing Board. Regular updates will also be 
provided to NHSEI.  
 
 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
The Joint Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to: 

• NOTE the work undertaken and next steps on managing COVID-19  

• NOTE ongoing engagement with key stakeholders on the response to wave 2 and 
service recovery and restoration.   

Page 22 of 40
Page 24



Birmingham and Solihull STP

Finance Update 2020/21

Item 6

Page 23 of 40

P
age 25



NHS Financial Performance Regime 
- April to September 2020

NHSE/I put in place a temporary financial regime for CCGs and NHS Providers 
for the first 6 months of the financial year.  The key features of the regime were 
as follows:

• The historic methodology for allocating funds to NHS organisations was 
suspended. 

• CCGs received a revised allocation based on expenditure incurred in 
2019/20.

• NHS Providers received centrally-defined block payments, again reflective of 
expenditure incurred in 2019/20.  Contracting between the CCG and NHS 
Providers was suspended.

• Costs relating to the Covid response were retrospectively reimbursed by 
NHSE/I on a monthly basis. In addition, reasonable additional costs relating 
to BAU services were also reimbursed.  The expectation of NHS 
organisations was therefore that they would be in a breakeven position for 
the first 6 months of the financial year.

• There was no expectation that CIP/QIPP schemes would deliver cashable 
savings during this period.

2
Page 24 of 40

P
age 26



STP Financial Performance – April to 
September 2020

BSOL STP (NHS organisations) £m

Operating Income 2,369.6

Operating Expenditure 2,590.4

Operating Surplus / (Deficit) before top-ups (221.0)

Top-ups received M1-6 223.5

Non Operating Items (21.9)

NHSE/I reported position (19.4)

Retrospective Top-Up still to be paid 19.4

Expected Final position 0

3
Page 25 of 40

P
age 27



STP COVID Expenditure – April to September 
2020

Areas of Covid expenditure £m

Additional Pay Costs in Providers* 36.2

Additional Non-Pay Costs in Providers, including PPE* 85.7

Additional costs of supporting the Hospital Discharge 

Programme, including packages of care

26.6

Additional cost of Primary Care services, including new 

models of care

13.6

Other, including locally funded independent sector 

capacity and expanded community support

8.0

170.2

4

In the first 6 months of the year, the STP incurred £170.2m of additional 

costs as a result of responding to the Covid pandemic.  This expenditure is 

outlined in the table below:

* Provider costs include £45.0m for the cost of the Nightingale Ward at the NEC

Page 26 of 40

P
age 28



NHS Financial Performance Regime 
– October 2020 to March 2021
From Month 7, a modified financial regime has been introduced as follows:

• There will be no further retrospective top-up funding, except for specific 
excluded items including:

• Covid Testing

• Covid Vaccination Programme

• Hospital Discharge Programme

• Independent Sector Activity (this is largely contracted and paid at a national level) 

• For months 7-12, NHS systems have been given allocations to cover the 
following areas of expenditure:

• Business As Usual services

• Additional Covid costs

• Growth monies to support restoration and recovery of services

• There is a continuation of the block payments to NHS providers to support 
“business as usual”. The value of the blocks has been increased from month 
7 to reflect agreed shares of system top-up, growth and Covid funding.

• Systems are expected to comply with existing investment targets and ring-
fenced funding for services such as Mental Health and Primary Care.

5
Page 27 of 40

P
age 29



STP Financial Plan – October 2020 to March 
2021
At the time of producing these slides, the STP is still in discussion with NHSE/I 
to sign off a financial plan for the second half of the financial year.  The current 
plan shows a shortfall of funding of £45m, £10.4m of which we are expecting to 
be resolved by the national team.  The breakdown of this deficit is as follows:

The table below shows the draft plan as currently submitted:

6

£m

Surplus / (Deficit) excluding specific items 2.1

Reduction in Non-NHS income generated by NHS Providers 

(including R&D, Education & training & commercial 

income)*

(36.7)

National funding yet to be confirmed (relates to regional 

Genomics service and specialist commissioning of LD 

packages)

(10.4)

Surplus / Deficit as per plan submission (45.0)

*It is acknowledged that non-NHS income will be adversely affected by a number of 

factors linked to the Covid pandemic.  The BSOL position is in line with that seen in 

other city-based STPs

Page 28 of 40

P
age 30



Efficiency plans

• Given the immediate operational pressures in responding to the Covid
pandemic, national targets for financial savings have been suspended for 
2020/21.

• For the second half of the financial year, allocations did include an implicit 
expectation of 1% savings, which NHS organisations are largely meeting 
through a range of smaller, transactional schemes.

• Although savings, in the traditional sense, have not been monitored and 
reported during the first half of 2020/21, a number of transformation 
approaches have been introduced across the system that should deliver 
improved value for money.  These include:

• Improved discharge models, incorporating all system partners, ensuring that 
patients are treated in the most appropriate setting once fit for discharge from an 
acute setting

• Expanded use of digital technology, which reduces the need for unnecessary 
travel to a healthcare setting and has the potential to reduce the fixed costs of 
providing a range of services

• Development of primary and community care models to reduce the need for 
secondary care interventions

• Closer system working, reducing duplication of resources between system 
partners

7
Page 29 of 40

P
age 31



Forward Look

• Looking ahead into 2021/22 and beyond is challenging at this point of time, 
given the uncertainty of both the service need and the financial framework 
within which these services will be funded.

• We are able to draw some conclusions around the challenges for 2021/22

• There will continue to be a financial impact from directly responding to the Covid
pandemic, including ongoing additional costs for testing, vaccination programmes, PPE 
etc.

• It is also likely that the enhanced infection control procedures introduced will continue, 
which impacts upon the way in which services are provided.  A number of these 
changes add additional steps into operational processes, which can reduce the 
efficiency of some tasks.

• The NHS will be faced with a massive increase in the backlog of patients waiting for 
treatment, particularly in some surgical specialties.  There will be an ongoing 
requirement for additional capacity in the medium term, which is likely to include 
continued use of independent sector capacity

• Whilst the overall quantum of funding for 2021/22 is unknown, it is expected that many 
of the principles introduced in 2020/21 will continue.  These will include:

• Greater allocation of funding at a system level, rather than at an organisational level

• Greater focus of block funding to cover the fixed cost of provider services, with far fewer 
services funded on a “cost per case” basis.

• Requirements for system partners to work together to deliver system-level efficiencies 
and financial balance.

8
Page 30 of 40

P
age 32



Urgent Care Update and NHS 111 First

Birmingham and Solihull Joint Overview and 
Health 

Wednesday 16 December 2020 

Item 7

Page 31 of 40

P
age 33



Overview

• Provide an overview of the current context of urgent care in Birmingham and 

Solihull

• Update of NHS 111 First and Urgent Treatment Centres

Page 32 of 40

P
age 34



Context

• During the peak months of the coronavirus pandemic the number of people attending Emergency 

Departments (EDs) reduced dramatically, particularly those seeking help for minor illnesses. 

• However, in recent weeks the number of people visiting EDs has risen, and in some places, risen 

sharply.  At the same time, due to social distancing and infection prevention and control precautions, 

the space in EDs is reduced by 30-50%.

• NHS England/Improvement (NHSE/I) have now directed that, by 1st December, NHS 111 First is 

implemented nationally.   The aim to guide the public in making the right healthcare choices to ensure 

their safety, as well as making sure they get the right treatment in the most appropriate place.

• NHS 111 First will make it easier and safer for patients to get the right advice or treatment when they 

urgently need it and increasingly, timeslots / appointments will be booked for them into a service that 

is right for them.

Page 33 of 40

P
age 35



Why do we need change? 
• In Birmingham and Solihull there are three EDs (plus Birmingham City Hospital which is outside of our 

STP) and pressure on these continues to increase.

• Around 70% of ED attendances are made up of walk-in patients, so as patient numbers have already 

begun to increase, we need to keep patients safe in the reduced space in waiting rooms.  We also 
need to provide emergency care safely for the most vulnerable and shielded patients. 

• We know that a significant proportion of those attending EDs could be seen elsewhere, for example 
primary care or an Urgent Treatment Centre. 

• NHS 111 First provides an opportunity to take patients on a different journey, one which gets them the 
right treatment in the right place. 

• In the future this should help the public in choosing the right service and if they are unsure, be 
confident in contacting NHS111.

Page 34 of 40

P
age 36



NHS 111 First
• NHS111, on the telephone and online, has been a core part of the NHS’ urgent care offer for many 

years.

• NHS 111 First has developed the service they offer to be able to booking patients into the following 
settings:

– Urgent Treatment Centres

– Same Day Emergency Care – such as Medical Assessment Units, Surgical Assessment Units, 
Emergency Pregnancy Assessment Units, Paediatric Assessment Units

– Emergency Departments

– This is in addition to able to book a GP or pharmacist appointment, which have been available 
for a number of years.

• NHS 111 First is operational across Birmingham and Solihull and NHS111 will be able to book a timed 
slot for patients that need to be seen in an Emergency Department; this will ensure patients are seen 
as safely and conveniently as possible. 

• This will need considerable changes in behaviour by the general public.

• An Equality Quality Impact Assessment has been completed and we are working together to ensure 
that people are not adversely affected.

• No patient will be turned away from ED however they may be asked/ or redirect to access a different 
service.

• Patients bought in by ambulance will still be seenPage 35 of 40

P
age 37



Urgent Treatment Centres
• Urgent Treatment Centres (UTC) across Birmingham and Solihull are no longer ‘walk-in’ services; patients now need to 

contact NHS111 for advice before attending these services.

• UTCs locations:
– Birmingham City Centre - Boots

– Erdington

– South Birmingham

– Warren Farm

– Washwood Heath

– Solihull 

• UTCs, with the exception of Birmingham City Centre location, are open 12 hours a day, 7 days a week (including bank 
holidays) so residents can feel assured that, should they require urgent medical attention, this facility will be there to 
support.

• Birmingham Boots UTCs is open during shop hours (Mon – Friday 8am – 6pm, Saturday 9am – 5pm and Sunday 11am –
5pm)

• Consistency of approach - In light of Covid-19 and the mounting pressures on the health service, residents who need to 
use this service are asked to phone 111 in the first instance and they will be triaged by NHS professionals who will then 
book them an appointment at the UTC.

Page 36 of 40

P
age 38



Erdington Urgent Treatment Centre

• The Walk-In Centre on Erdington High Street, has been replaced by ‘Erdington Urgent Treatment 
Centre (UTC)’ and is located on the Northcroft site, 0.8 miles away from the previous location.

• The Northcroft site, which was already being used by the NHS to provide vital services, was chosen 

as the location for the Urgent Treatment Centre due to both its existing infrastructure and accessibility. 

• The site is easily accessible by bus and is within walking distance of both Erdington High Street and 

Gravelly Hill train stations. There will also be on-site parking available to patients, unlike the previous 

Walk-In centre site.

Page 37 of 40

P
age 39



Solihull Urgent Treatment Centre
• Before the COVID-19 pandemic Solihull Urgent Treatment Centre was located at the Solihull Hospital site.

• Solihull Hospital site has since been designated as a COVID-19 free site therefore there are no walk in / urgent 
care services. This includes temporary closure of closure of the Minor Injuries Unit (MIU) at Solihull Hospital.

• Solihull UTC has therefore moved to an interim site and reopened, in August, at Chelmsley Wood Primary Care 
Centre in August.

• The majority of patients are seen virtually and face-to-face appointment is made if clinically necessary. 

• The majority of patients do not need to go to the UTC in person; this makes the service safe and accessible to 
people across the borough. 

• In October it was recently agreed for a further interim move of the UTC from Chelmsley Wood Primary Care Centre 
to Hurst Lane, 3.5 miles away, so it can be co-located with the Care Referral Centre to offer safe and effective 
care, as well as making the most efficient use of NHS staff and resources. 

• Patients are advised to contact NHS 111 prior to attending, as described above, as they cannot be seen without an 
appointment. 

Page 38 of 40

P
age 40



Birmingham and Solihull STP Approach

• Clinically led approach to implementing effective care pathways across NHS 111 and wider 

urgent care services. 

• Maintain focus on Birmingham and Solihull digital urgent care vision for the long term.

• Clear governance and oversight, via A&E Delivery Board to work in partnership to deliver 

national initiatives/requirements in in a safe, measured way

• Work closely with West Midlands Ambulance, our NHS 111 provider 

• Engagement and communication with public and stakeholders.

Page 39 of 40

P
age 41



Thank you - any questions?

Page 40 of 40

P
age 42


	Agenda
	1 Agenda Pack
	Agenda Contents
	BIRMINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
	Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Birmingham and Solihull)
	Wednesday, 16 December 2020 at 17:00 hours
	in On-line meeting, Microsoft Teams
	A G E N D A



	Joint\ HOSC\ minutes\ -\ 13\.10\.20to\ Cllr\ DHA
	Briefing\ on\ Birmingham\ and\ Solihull\ STP\ Wave\ 2\ Update_16122020
	Finance\ slides\ -\ December\ 2020
	Urgent\ Emergency\ Care\ and\ NHS\ 111_16122020


